

Uniting the Community through Sport

Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Incorporated®

By-Laws of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc., and individual Sports Divisions of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.









Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Incorporated

CONSTITUTION

Part 1 Preliminary

Definitions

In these rules:

RHRSC - means the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.

Club - means the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.

Association - means the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.

Sporting division - means any sporting sub-committee forming part of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.

Ordinary member - means a member of a Committee who is not an office-bearer of the association, as referred to in rule 15 (1).

Secretary - means:

- (a) the person holding office under these rules as Secretary of the association, or
- (b) if no such person holds that office the Public Officer of the association.

Special General Meeting - means a General Meeting of the association other than an Annual General Meeting.

Name and Objects of the Association

1 Name

The name of the Incorporated Association shall be the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Incorporated hereinafter as the RHRSC which includes various sporting sub-committee under its banner.

2 Objects

The objects for which the club is established are as follows:

- [a] To foster and encourage community participation and promote sport and related social activities.
- (b) To encourage and facilitate the development of junior sport in the area.
- [c] To make contributions to any insurance fund for the benefit of the members.
- [d] To purchase, hire, lease, or otherwise acquire property, leasehold or otherwise, for the purpose of the club in pursuance of the Objects of the Association..
- [e] To erect, maintain, improve or alter any building or buildings for the purposes of the club.





- [f] To give, sell, exchange, hire, lease or otherwise dispose of the property of the club, or any part or parts thereof.
- [g] To invest and deal with any of the moneys of the club, not immediately required upon such securities, and in such manner as may from time to time, be determined.
- [h] To make, draw, accept, execute and issue Promissory Notes, Bills of Exchange and/or negotiable instruments.
- (i) To borrow or raise or secure the payment of money in pursuance of the Objects of the Association.
- To do all such other things incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects.

Special Conditions of the Association

- [a] The RHRSC Executive consists of the President, Secretary, Treasurer and two delegates from each sporting division to be known as Ordinary Members.
- (b) All contractual agreements and leases are to be in the name of the RHRSC and cosigned by two of the RHRSC Executive one of which must be the Treasurer.
- [c) All sports divisions will collect and remit an annually determined administration levy of \$5.00 per player to the Rouse Hill Rams Sports (RHRSC). The RHRSC administration levy is payable by any individual sports participant where the name Rouse Hill Rams and / or its logos are used in the conduct of that sport. The RHRSC administration levy will form part of each sports division's registration fee.
- [d] The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club (RHRSC) administration levy for each sports division will be determined at the Annual General Meeting of the Association
- [e] All assets obtained by any sporting division remain the property of the RHRSC.
- [f] Assets include sporting equipment and any other equipment acquired.
- [g] All monies are the property of the RHRSC.
- [h] All officials of the association including Coaches and Managers must sign a Child Protection Act form.
- [i] All intellectual property including databases from all sports divisions of the RHRSC remain the property of the RHRSC.
- [j] No intellectual property can be copied or used outside of the RHRSC without the written permission of the RHRSC Executive.
- [k] Failure to comply with this rule may result in the dismissal of that person from the association.
- [I] All capital expenditure must be approved by the RHRSC Executive.
- [m] Changes to names, logos and sports division's colours must be authorised by the RHRSC Executive.







- [n] Motions put forward by sports divisions to change constitutional rules or structures, such as incorporation, must be approved by the RHRSC Executive.
- [o] The RHRSC Executive has the power to accept incorporated sports clubs as a sports division of the RHRSC and can accept or suggest modifications to their constitution prior to their affiliation with the RHRSC.
- [p] Sponsorship proposals and offers need to be approved by the RHRSC Executive.
- [q] Notification of a General Meeting, Special General Meeting or Annual General Meeting will be made electronically or published on our web-site one month prior to the date it is to be held.

Part 2 Membership

- 4 Membership qualifications
 - (a) Members are defined as;
 - (i) Playing members over the age of 18 who are properly registered and financial members of a sports division under the RHRSC and membership fees are up to date with RHRSC.
 - (ii) Playing members under the age of 18 who are properly registered and financial members of a sports division shall be represented by a parent or guardian of a sports division under the RHRSC and membership fees are up to date with RHRSC.
 - (iii) Non playing members are persons involved in any of the sports division's activities who have been nominated as a member by any sports Management Committee by way of motion at any Committee or General Meeting.
 - (iv) Non playing members must pay the membership fee referred to in rule 3 (c).
 - (v) Honorary Life Membership of the RHRSC may be granted to any member who has rendered outstanding service to the club and has been a member of the club for at least 10 years. The RHRSC club's first season, and thus membership started, in March, 2006.
 - (vi) The notice of motion for Life Membership must be submitted in writing no later than the monthly meeting preceding the Annual General Meeting, and be recommended by the Executive Committee of the RHRSC.
 - (vii) All members of the club are entitled to full membership and rights in the club subject to being properly registered and financial after a qualifying period of three months.
 - (viii) The RHRSC Executive or any sport Management Committee may accept or reject any application for membership.
 - (ix) Cessation of membership





A person ceases to be a member of the association if the person:

- (a) Dies, or
- (b) Resigns membership, or
- (c) Is expelled from the association, or
- (d) Fails to pay outstanding fees within 3 months of the due date, or
- (e) Fails to submit a "Child Protection Act" form if required.

Membership entitlements not transferable

A right, privilege or obligation which a person has by reason of being a member of the association:

- (a) Is not capable of being transferred or transferred to another person, except in the case of a member under the age of 18 years of age, where the membership entitlements are passed on to their parent or guardian.
- (b) Terminates on cessation of the person's membership.

6 Resignation of membership (Committee only)

- (1) A Committee member of the association is not entitled to resign that membership except in accordance with the following rule:
 - a) A Committee member of the association who has paid all amounts payable by the member to the association with respect to membership, may resign his / her membership of the association in writing to the RHRSC Secretary, (email is acceptable)

7 Register of members

- (1) A register of members shall be kept by the club showing the name, address, commencement date and financial status for each member. Provision for noting the date of cessation of membership shall also be contained in the register.
- (2) A copy of each sports division membership register must be supplied by each Sports division Secretary to the Secretary of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club, no later than one (1) month after each new season's commencement date. It is the responsibility of each Sports Division Secretary to update the member ship register as new members are added.

8 Fees and subscriptions (RHRSC)

See revised 3.c) and d) Special Conditions of the Association.

9 Members' liabilities

The liability of a member of the association to contribute towards the payment of the debts and liabilities of the association or the costs, charges and expenses of the winding up of the association is limited to the amount, if any, unpaid by the member in respect of membership of the association as required by rule 4.





10 Resolution of internal disputes

Disputes between members (in their capacity as members) of the association, and disputes between members and the association, are to be referred to a mediator and or panel appointed by the RHRSC Executive.

1 Disciplining of members

A complaint may be made to the RHRSC Committee by any person that is a member of the association: where that member;

- (1) Has persistently refused or neglected to comply with a provision or provisions of these rules, or
 - (a) Has persistently and wilfully acted in a manner prejudicial to the interests of the association.
- (2) On receiving such a complaint, the Committee:
 - (a) Must cause notice of the complaint to be served on the member concerned; and
 - (b) Must give the member at least 14 days from the time the notice is served within which to make submissions to the Committee in connection with the complaint, and
 - (c) Must take into consideration any submissions made by the member in connection with the complaint.
- (3) The RHRSC Executive may expel the member from the association or suspend the member from membership of the association if, after considering the complaint and any submissions made in connection with the complaint, it is satisfied that the facts alleged in the complaint have been proved.
- (4) If the Committee expels or suspends a member, the Secretary must, within 7 days after the action is taken, cause written notice to be given to the member of the action taken, of the reasons given by the Committee for having taken that action and of the members right of appeal under rule 13.
- (5) The expulsion or suspension does not take effect:
 - (a) Until the expiration of the period within which the member is entitled to appeal against the motion concerned.

12 Right of appeal of disciplined member

- (1) A member may appeal to the association in General Meeting against a motion of the RHRSC Executive Committee under rule 12, within 7 days after notice of the motion is served on the member, by lodging with the Secretary a notice to that effect.
- (2) The notice needs to be accompanied by a statement of the grounds on which the member intends to rely for the purposes of the appeal.
- (3) On receipt of a notice from a member under clause (1), the Secretary must notify the Committee which is to convene a General Meeting of the association to be held within 28 days after the date on which the Secretary received the notice.





- (4) At a General Meeting of the association convened under clause (1)
 - (a) No business other than the question of the appeal is to be transacted, and
 - (b) The Committee and the member must be given the opportunity to state their respective cases orally or in writing, or both, and the member will be allowed to have a witness present .
 - (c) The Committee members present are to vote by secret ballot on the question of whether the motion should be confirmed or revoked.
- (5) If at the General Meeting the association passes a motion in favour of the confirmation of the motion, the suspension or expulsion is upheld.

Part 3 The Committee

13 Powers of the Committee

The Committee is to be called the Executive Committee of the association and is to control and manage the affairs of the association, and

- (a) Will exercise all such functions as may be exercised by the association, other than those functions that are required by these rules to be exercised by a General Meeting of members of the association, and
- (b) Has power to perform all such acts and do all such things as appear to the Committee to be necessary or desirable for the proper management of the affairs of the association.
- (c) Has power to formulate by-laws consistent with the rules of the RHRSC.

14 Constitution and membership

- (1) The RHRSC Committee is to consist of:
 - (a) The office-bearers of the association, and
 - (b) Ordinary members of the Committee, who will be known as delegates, consisting of two representatives nominated from each sports division, and
 - (c) Delegates will be nominated to represent their sports by their respective sports divisions Management Committees, and
 - (d) Delegates can be represented in their absence by other members (alternate delegates) of that sports division at meetings of the RHRSC and have full voting rights at those meetings which they attend.
- (2) The office-bearers of the association are to be:
 - (a) The President, and
 - (b) The Treasurer, and
 - (c) The Secretary





- (3) Each member of the Committee is, subject to these rules, to hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting following the date of the member's election, but is eligible for re-election.
- (4) In the event of a casual vacancy occurring in the Office bearers of the Committee, the Executive Committee may appoint a member of the association to fill the vacancy and the member so appointed is to hold office, subject to these rules, until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting next following the date of the appointment.
- (5) In the event of a casual vacancy occurring in any of the Ordinary members (delegates) the sports division affected will appoint a replacement.
- (6) Only members 18 years of age are eligible to nominate for positions and vote.

Election of Committee members (RHRSC)

- [1] Nominations of candidates for election as office-bearers of the association,
 - (a) Must be made in writing, signed by 2 members of the association and accompanied by the written consent of the candidate (which may be endorsed on the form of the nomination), and
 - (b) Must be delivered to the Secretary of the association at least 7 days before the date fixed for the holding of the Annual General Meeting at which the election is to take place.
- [2] If insufficient nominations are received to fill all vacancies on the Committee, the candidates nominated are taken to be elected and further nominations are to be received at the Annual General Meeting.
- (3) If insufficient nominations are received, any vacant positions remaining on the Committee are taken to be casual vacancies.
- (4) If the number of nominations received is equal to the number of vacancies to be filled, the persons nominated are taken to be elected.
- (5) If the number of nominations received for any position exceeds the number of vacancies to be filled, a ballot is to be held.
- (6) The ballot for the election of office-bearers of the Committee is to be conducted at the Annual General Meeting in such usual and proper manner as the Committee may direct.
- (7) Voting is by way of a show of hands unless the meeting requests a secret ballot.

16 Secretary

- (1) It is the duty of the Secretary to keep minutes of:
 - (a) All appointments of office-bearers and Ordinary members of the Committee,
 - (b) The names of members of the Committee present at a Committee Meeting or a General Meeting,
 - (c) All proceedings at Committee Meetings and General Meetings.
- (2) Minutes of proceedings at a meeting must be signed by the chairperson of the meeting or by the chairperson of the next succeeding meeting.





17 Treasurer

- (1) It is the duty of the Treasurer of the association to ensure:
 - (a) That all money due to the association is collected and received and that all payments authorised by the association are made, and
 - (b) That correct books and accounts are kept showing the financial affairs of the association, including full details of all receipts and expenditure connected with the activities of the association, and
 - (c) No Sports division Treasurer may simultaneously hold the position of RHRSC Treasurer and Treasurer of any other Sports division.
 - (d) The RHRSC Treasurer cannot simultaneously hold any Sports division Treasurer's position and the position of RHRSC Treasurer.
 - (e) The Treasurer of each sports division will be responsible for the reconciliation of his / hers Sporting division's bank account, including a statement of income and expenses at least monthly, and provide a copy of the reconciliation to the RHRSC Treasurer monthly.

18 Casual vacancies

- [1] For the purposes of these rules, a casual vacancy in the office of a member of the Committee occurs if the member:
 - (a) Dies, or
 - (b) Ceases to be a member of the association, or
 - (c) Becomes an insolvent under administration within the meaning of the Corporations
 - (d) Resigns office by notice in writing given to the Secretary, or
 - (e) Is removed from office under rule 20, or
 - (f) Becomes a mentally incapacitated person, or
 - (g) Is absent without the consent of the Committee from all meetings of the Committee held during a period of 6 months.

19 Removal of member/RHRSC Committee

- (1) The association in General Meeting may by motion remove any member of the Committee from the office of member before the expiration of the member's term of office and may by motion appoint another person to hold office until the expiration of the term of office of the member so removed.
- (2) If a member of the Committee to whom a proposed motion referred to in clause (1) relates makes representations in writing to the Secretary or President (not exceeding a reasonable length) and requests that the representation be notified to the members of the association, the Secretary or the President may send a copy of the representations to each member of the association or, if the representations are not so sent, the member is entitled to require that the representations be read out at the meeting at which the motion is considered.





20 Meetings and quorum

- (1) The Committee shall meet as often as necessary to properly conduct the business of the club at least quarterly at a time and place as the Committee may determine.
- (2) Additional meetings of the Committee may be convened by the President or by any member of the Committee.
- (3) Oral or written notice of a meeting of the Committee must be given by the Secretary to each member of the Committee at least 48 hours (or such other period as may be unanimously agreed on by the members of the Committee) before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.
- (4) Notice of a meeting given under clause (3) must specify the general nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting and no business other than that business is to be transacted at the meeting, except business, which the Committee members present at the meeting agree to treat as urgent business. The chairperson with the concurrence of the meeting may alter the order in which business at any meeting may be taken.
- (5) Any one (1) of the office bearers and a minimum of three delegates (ordinary members of the Committee) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of a meeting of the Committee. (SGM 210211).
- (6) No business is to be transacted by the Committee unless a quorum is present and if, within half an hour of the time appointed for the meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting shall be dissolved.
- (7) If at a meeting of the Committee:
 - (a) the President is absent, the Secretary will preside.
 - (b) If the President and the Secretary are absent or unwilling to act, one of the remaining members of the Committee may be chosen by the members present at the meeting to preside.

21 Delegation by Committee to Sub-Committee

- (1) The Committee of the RHRSC, may form one or more sub-Committees consisting of members of the club and delegate specific functions as the sub-Committee of sporting divisions to run the sport.
- (2) The Committee, may if it so desires dissolve any sub-Committee.
- (3) Voting and decisions
- (4) Questions arising at a Committee Meeting or at any Sports division appointed by the Committee are to be determined by a majority of the votes of members of the Committee or Sports division present at the meeting.
- (5) Each member present at a meeting of the Committee or of any Sports division appointed by the Committee (including the person presiding at the meeting) is entitled to one vote but, in the event of an equality of votes on any question, the person presiding may exercise a casting vote.
- (6) The Committee may act despite any vacancy on the Committee.





Part 4 General meeting

22 Annual General Meetings - holding of

- (1) The RHRSC must at least once in each calendar year and within the period of 6 months after the expiration of each financial year of the club, convene an Annual General Meeting of its members
- (2) Financial Year to be 1st September to 31st August.

23 Annual General Meetings - calling of and business at

- (1) The Annual General Meeting of the RHRSC is, subject to rule 24, to be convened on such date and at such place and time as the Committee deems appropriate..
- (2) In addition to any other business which may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting, the business of an Annual General Meeting is to include the following:
 - (a) To confirm the minutes of the last preceding Annual General Meeting and of any Special General Meeting held since that meeting.
 - (b) To receive from the Committee reports on the activities of the association during the last preceding financial year,
 - (c) To elect office-bearers of the association.
 - (d) To receive and consider the statement which is required to be submitted to members under section 26(6) of the Act.
 - (e) To determine the annual subscription payable by sporting divisions to the RHRSC
- (3) An Annual General Meeting must be specified as such in the notice convening it.

24 Special General Meetings - calling of

- (1) The Committee may convene a Special General Meeting of the association.
- (2) The Committee must, on the requisition in writing of at least 5 per cent of the total number of members, convene a Special General Meeting of the association.
- (3) A requisition of members for a Special General Meeting:
 - (a) Must state the purpose or purposes of the meeting.
 - (b) Must be signed by the members making the requisition.
 - (c) Must be lodged with the Secretary of the RHRSC.
 - (d) May consist of several documents in a similar form, each signed by one or more of the members making the requisition.
- (4) If the Committee fails to convene a Special General Meeting to be held within 2 months after that date on which a requisition of members for the meeting is lodged with the Secretary, any one or more of the members who made the requisition may convene a Special General Meeting to be held not later than 3 months after that date.





25 Notice

- (1) Except if the nature of the business proposed to be dealt with at a General Meeting requires a Special Resolution of the association, the Secretary must, at least 14 days before the date fixed for the holding of the General Meeting, give a notice to each member specifying the place, date and time of the meeting and the nature of the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting.
- (2) If the nature of the business proposed to be dealt with at a General Meeting requires a Special Resolution of the association, the Secretary must, at least 21 days before the date fixed for the holding of the General Meeting, cause notice to be given to each member specifying, in addition to the matter required under clause (1), the intention to propose the motion as a Special Resolution.
- (3) No business other than that specified in the notice convening a General Meeting is to be transacted at the meeting except, in the case of an Annual General Meeting, business which may be transacted under other rules herein.
- (4) A member desiring to bring any business before a General Meeting may give notice in writing of that business to the Secretary who must include that business in the next notice calling a General Meeting given after receipt of the notice from the member.

26 Procedure

- (1) No item of business is to be transacted at a General Meeting unless a quorum of members entitled under these rules to vote is present during the time the meeting is considering that item.
- (2) Any 3 members who are office bearers constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of a General Meeting of the Committee.
- (3) If within half an hour after the appointed time for the commencement of a General Meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting:
 - (a) If convened on the requisition of members, is to be dissolved, and
 - (b) In any other case, is to stand adjourned to another time as specified by the President or Secretary.
 - (c) If at the adjourned meeting who ever is present shall constitute a quorum.

27 Presiding member

- (1) The President or, in the President's absence, the Secretary, is to preside as chairperson at each General Meeting of the association.
- (2) If the President and the Secretary are absent or unwilling to act, the members present must elect one of the Committee to preside as chairperson at the meeting.





28 Adjournment

- (1) The chairperson of a General Meeting at which a quorum is present may, with the consent of the majority of members present at the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and place to place, but no business is to be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting at which the adjournment took place.
- (2) If a General Meeting is adjourned for 14 days or more, the Secretary must give written or oral notice of the adjourned meeting to each member of the association stating the place, date and time of the meeting and the nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting.
- (3) Except as provided in clauses (1) and (2), notice of an adjournment of a General Meeting or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting is not required to be given.

Making decisions and voting

- (1) Voting at a General Meeting of the club is to be determined by a show of hands unless a poll and/or secret ballot is demanded by the chairperson or by a member present in person at the meeting. Decisions shall be made by simple majority vote, except those matters that must be made by Special Resolution.
- (2) If a poll and or secret ballot is demanded at a General Meeting, the poll and/or secret ballot must be taken:
 - (a) Immediately in the case of a poll which relates to the election of the chairperson of the meeting or to the question of an adjournment, or
 - (b) In any other case, in such manner and at such time before the close of the meeting as the chairperson directs, or
 - (c) The result of the poll on the matter is taken to be the resolution of the meeting on that matter.
- (3) On any question or decision arising at a General Meeting of the association a member has one vote only.
- (4) All votes must be given personally or by proxy but no member may hold more than 5 proxies.
- (5) In the case of an equality of votes on a question at a General Meeting, the chairperson of the meeting is entitled to exercise a casting vote.
- (6) A member or proxy is not entitled to vote at any General Meeting of the association unless all money due and payable by the member or proxy to the association has been paid.

30 Appointment of proxies

(1) Each member is to be entitled to appoint another member as proxy by notice given to the Secretary no later than 24 hours before the time of the meeting in respect of which the proxy is appointed.





- (2) A proxy vote can only be accepted made by a financial member of the association who has been a member for three months.
- (3) The notice appointing the proxy is to be in the form set out in Appendix 2 to these rules

31 Special Resolution

A resolution of the association is a Special Resolution:

(a) If it is passed by a majority which comprises at least two-thirds of such members of the association as, being entitled under these rules so to do, vote in person or by proxy at a General Meeting of which at least 21 days' written notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a Special Resolution was given in accordance with these rules.

Part 5 Miscellaneous

32 Insurance

- (1) The association must effect and maintain insurance under applicable acts of Parliament.
- (2) In addition to the insurance required under clause (1), the association may effect and maintain other insurance.

33 Funds - source

- (1) The funds of the association are to be derived from entrance fees and annual levies of members, donations, sponsorships, canteen and, subject to any motion passed by the association in General Meeting, such other sources as the Executive Committee determines.
- (2) All money received by the association must be deposited as soon as practicable and without deduction to the credit of the association's bank account.
- (3) The association must, as soon as practicable after receiving any money, issue an appropriate receipt.

34 Funds – management

- (1) Subject to any motion passed by the association in General Meeting, the funds of the association are to be used in pursuance of the objects of the association in such manner as the Committee determines.
- (2) The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc. is responsible for all monies.
- (3) a) Each Sports division will operate a separate bank account for the conduct of the financial affairs of that sports division. The name and format of each sports division account will be as illustrated in the following example; 'Rouse Hill Rams Netaball Club – a sports division of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc'
 - b) The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club will determine the banking authority at which each Sports division will conduct that Sports division's bank account.





- (4) All cheques, drafts, bills of exchange, promissory notes and other negotiable instruments of the Association must be signed by any 2 members of the Association or Sports division or employees of the association, being members or employees authorised to do so by the Association or Sports division. No related parties may be authorised as co-signatories to the accounts of the Association or a Sports division.
- (5) Each Sports division within the Association will submit to the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Executive an operating Budget of Income and Expenditure for approval by the RHRSC, eight (8) weeks prior to that season's commencement.
- (6) Each Sports division must seek the approval of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Executive for expenditure not provided for in the operating Budget described in (5).
- (7) All sponsorship needs to be signed off and approved by the RHRSC Executive.
- (8) Proceeds from ground signage belongs to the RHRSC.
- (9) Income derived from canteen operating profits and raffles conducted at sponsor venues will be divided in an agreed percentage between the sports divisions operating these revenue sources, and the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club.

35 Alteration of objects and rules

The statement of objects and these rules may be altered, rescinded or added to only by a Special Resolution of the association.

36 Common seal

- (1) The common seal of the association must be kept in the custody of the Public Officer.
- (2) The common seal must not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of the Committee and the affixing of the common seal must be attested by the signatures either of 2 members of the Committee or of 1 member of the Committee and of the Public Officer or Secretary.

37 Custody of books

- (1) Except as otherwise provided by these rules, the Treasurer and or Secretary must keep in his or her custody or under his or her control all records, books and other documents relating to the association. Inspection of books
- (2) The records, books and other documents of the association must be open to inspection, free of charge, by a member of the association at any reasonable hour.

38 Service of notices

- (1) For the purpose of these rules, a notice may be served on or given to a person and is taken unless the contrary is proved:
 - (a) By delivering it to the person personally, or
 - (b) By sending it by pre-paid post to the address of the person, or
 - (c) By sending it by facsimile transmission or some other form of electronic transmission to an address specified by the person for giving or serving the notice.







[Signature of seconder]

Application form for nomination of office bearers and/or ordinary members	
I,	(full name of applicant)
of	(address)
Hereby nominate to become an office bearer and/or Club Inc. In the event of my election as an office bear the Association for the time being in force.	
[Position nominating for[[Sport nominating for]
[Signature of applicant]	Date
I,	
[Signature of proposer]	Date
l(full	name) of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.
Second the nomination of the applicant, who is personal office bearer and/or ordinary member of the associations.	·
	Date







Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Incorporated

Form of appointment of proxy

I,(full name of applicant)	
of	
Being a member of Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.	
hereby appoint(full name of proxy)	
of(address)	
Being a member of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc., as my proxy to vote for me on my	
behalf at the General Meeting of the association (Annual General Meeting or special general	
meeting, as the case may be) to be held on theday of	
and at any adjournment of that meeting.	
■ My proxy is authorised to vote in favour of/against (delete as appropriate) the motion (insert details).	
■ The motion to	
(to be inserted)	
■ The motion to	
(to be inserted)	
The motion to	
(to be inserted)	
[Name of member appointing proxy]	

NOTE: A proxy vote may not be given to a person who is not a member of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc. for at least three months.





By-laws for individual Sporting Divisions of Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Incorporated

Part 1 General

- (1) These by-laws are to be read in conjunction with the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc. constitution.
- (2) The RHRSC constitution is to be adhered to and is the governing document by which each sporting division operates under.
- (3) The following exceptions apply to each individual sports division.
 - (a) Each sports division's Management Committee will have as its office bearers a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer as part of the Committee.
 - (b) Each sports division's Management Committee will also comprise 3 ordinary members
 - (c) An Annual General Meeting of each sports division will determine the office bearers and ordinary members of that sports division's Committee
- (4) All sports divisions will adhere to the RHRSC constitution and are responsible for the operational and development requirements of that sport,
- (5) All sports divisions need to adhere to the constitution Part 1 Rule 3 Special conditions of the Association.
- (6) Membership to the RHRSC is by way of a levy payable at the beginning of each season by all registered players.
- (7) All registered players are eligible to be members of the RHRSC.
- (8) An annual levy set out in the constitution is payable by any member of any sport to enable membership rights of the RHRSC.
- (9) Life members of the RHRSC are exempt from membership fees.
- (10) All leases and contractual agreements are to be in the name of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc. and need to be signed by any two office bearers of the RHRSC.
- [11] The Sports divisions of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc., will consist of Soccer, Netball, Cricket, Athletics, Rugby Union, Summer sports, Oz Tag and Touch Football. (EC18.12.06, EC21.8.07, EC21.7.08).
- (12) Appointed Co-ordinators to the Executive Committee of the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc., will have full voting rights at Executive Committee meetings. (EC21.1.08)
- [13] The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club and its sports divisions will not sell advertising space on player's uniforms (EC 17.05.10).





- [14] The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club will provide a Sports Membership Award based on the following criteria;
 - (a) Only registered sports competitors will be recognised for the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Membership Award
 - (b) Registered sports competitors must have competed in five (5) consecutive years to be considered eligible for the Award
 - (c) The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club (not its sports divisions) will recognise those who have competed for five (5) consecutive years across different sports divisions (EC 16.08.10)
- [15] The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club will award the 'Rowdy Volunteer of the Year Award' based on the following criteria;
 - (a) The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club will consider a single nomination from each Sports division for the Award.
 - (b) Divisional nominations will be submitted in writing to the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club
 - (c) The Award will consist of a perpetual and individual trophy
 - (d) The Award will be presented at a Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club function to be held annually in June (EC 20.09.10).

Part 2 Committee

- (1) Each Sports division is to have an Annual General Meeting to elect their Committee to be held within 3 months of the end of each season.
- [2] Each Sports division will be known as the Management Committee for that sport.
- (3) The Committee will comprise of four office bearers, President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer and three ordinary members.
- (4) Two of the Management Committee will be nominated by the Management Committee of each sporting sub-committee to be delegates of the RHRSC.
- (5) Nominations for office bearers are to be on appendix 1 of the RHRSC constitution and are to be sent to the Secretary of the RHRSC prior to the Annual General Meeting of that Sports division.
- (6) Details of each sport's Management Committee contact details must be sent to the Secretary of the RHRSC after each sport's Annual General Meeting.
- (7) Minutes of each sport's Management Committee Meetings, together with a reconciled Treasurer's Report detailing income and expenditure must be submitted to the Secretary, Rouse Hill rams Sports Club prior to each meeting of the Association.







Part 3 Financial

- (1) Motions put forward by any Sports division for capital expenditure needs to be put forward to the RHRSC Executive for approval.
- (2) Each Sports division Treasurer is responsible for the collection of all funds derived from registration and subscriptions.
- (3) The Treasurer of each Sports division is responsible for the collection and deposit of membership fees to the RHRSC account.
- (4) Both the Treasurer of the RHRSC and each sports division Treasurer will receive a monthly bank statement.
- (5) All sports division need to submit a Budget for the full financial year prior to the Annual General Meeting of the RHRSC.
- (6) All revenue generated by raffles (conducted at sponsor venues) and the Canteen (operated from Centenary Park, Commercial Road, Rouse Hill) will be split based on 90% to the sports division conducting the activity, and 10% to the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc. The revenue split is based on the net takings of the activity (EC 17.05.10).
- (7) Revenue raised from 500 Club sponsorship activities will be split with 75% to the sports division conducting this activity, and 25% to the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc.
- (8) Sponsorship generated by an individual sports division remains with that sports division. (EC20.08.07).
- (9) The Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club Inc., will absorb merchant fees charged on credit card sales for merchandise purchases (EC10.12.07).
- (10) All Rouse Hill Rams sports divisions will charge a one percent (1%) surcharge for registration fees that are transacted by credit card. American Express and Diners Club credit cards will not be accepted by the Rouse Hill Rams Sports Club or any of it's sports divisions. EFTPOS transactions will not attract any surcharge. (EC21.1.08).

